

Policy Owner	Department	Effective Date	Approval Date	Review Cycle	Revision Due Date
Laura Gauvrit	Pastoral	December 2019	3-12-19	Annual	December 2020

# SAFEGUARDING & CHILD PROTECTION POLICY

## Policy Approver: Curriculum & Welfare Committee

Version Control

Version Number	Date of Change	Changes Made
1.1	7/12/17	Updated to new Policy layout
1.2	4/1/2018	Policy re-written in accordance with latest guidelines (KCSIE 2018)
1.3	November 2018	Additional section – Definition, pupils with SEN and disabilities, and monitoring arrangements
1.3	November 2018	Update to Children First Northamptonshire
1.3	November 2018	Insertion of section - Sexting
1.4	November 2019	Adoption of NCC policy with school adaptations





## Contents

1.	Policy Name	3
2.	Policy Aims	3
3.	Legislation and statutory guidance	3
4.	Equality statement	4
5.	Roles and responsibilities	5
6.	Confidentiality	7
7.	Recognising abuse and taking action	7
8.	School procedures	. 12
9.	Communication with parents/ carers	. 13
10.	Online Safety	. 13
11.	Useful links	. 13
12.	Record keeping	. 14
13.	Training	. 14
14.	Monitoring arrangements	. 15
15.	Related policies	. 15

## 1. Policy Name

Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy

## 2. Policy Aims

Huxlow Science College aims:

- To inform staff, parents/carers, volunteers and governors about the school's responsibilities for safeguarding children.
- To enable everyone to have a clear understanding of how these responsibilities should be carried out.
- To ensure that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner to safeguard and promote children's welfare.

#### OUR VISION

"Safe, happy and successful students who go on to become safe, happy and successful adults"

## OUR GOAL

"At Huxlow every individual is empowered to fulfil their potential"

## DEFINITIONS

Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is defined as:-

- Protecting children from maltreatment;
- Preventing impairment of children's health or development;
- Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care;
- Taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes.

**Child protection** is part of this definition and refers to activities undertaken to prevent children suffering, or being likely to suffer, significant harm.

**Abuse** is a form of maltreatment of a child, and may involve inflicting harm or failing to act to prevent harm. *Appendix 1 explains the different types of abuse.* 

**Neglect** is a form of abuse and is the persistent failure to meet a child's basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in the serious impairment of the child's health or development. *Appendix 1 defines neglect in more detail.* 

Children includes everyone under the age of 18.

(Keeping Children Safe in Education DfE, September 2019)

## 3. Legislation and statutory guidance

This policy is based on the Department for Education's statutory guidance, **Keeping Children Safe in** Education 2019 and Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018, and the Governance Handbook.

This policy is also based on the following legislation and statutory guidance:-

• The Children Act 1989 and The Children Act 2004 amendment-<u>Section 11</u> of the Children Act 2004 places duties on a range of organisations and individuals to ensure their functions, and any services that they contract out to others, are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.

- Section 5B(11) of the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003, as inserted by section 74 of the **Serious Crime Act 2015**, which places a statutory duty on teachers to report to the police where they discover that female genital mutilation (FGM) appears to have been carried out on a girl under 18
- Statutory guidance on FGM, which sets out responsibilities with regards to safeguarding and supporting girls affected by FGM
- The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, which outlines when people with criminal convictions can work with children
- Schedule 4 of the **Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006**, which defines what 'regulated activity' is in relation to children
- Statutory guidance on the Prevent duty, which explains schools' duties under the **Counter-Terrorism** and Security Act 2015 with respect to protecting people from the risk of radicalisation and extremism
- Section 175 of the **Education Act 2002**, which places a duty on schools and local authorities to safeguard and promote the welfare of pupils
- The **School Staffing (England) Regulations 2009**, which set out what must be recorded on the single central record and the requirement for at least one person on a school interview/appointment panel to be trained in safer recruitment techniques
- Sexual Offences Act (2003)
- Part 3 of the schedule to the Education (Independent School Standards) Regulations 2014, which places a duty on academies and independent schools to safeguard and promote the welfare of pupils at the school (Academies, including free schools, and independent schools)
- Part 1 of the schedule to the Non-Maintained Special Schools (England) Regulations 2015, which places a duty on non-maintained special schools to safeguard and promote the welfare of pupils at the school (Non-maintained special schools)
- The Childcare (Disqualification) Regulations 2009 (and 2018 amendment) and Childcare Act 2006, which set out who is disqualified from working with children (All schools with pupils aged under 8) This policy also meets requirements relating to safeguarding and welfare in the statutory framework for the Early Years Foundation Stage. (All early years providers)

## 4. Equality statement

Some children have an increased risk of abuse, and additional barriers can exist for some children with respect to recognising or disclosing it. We are committed to anti-discriminatory practice and recognise children's diverse circumstances. We ensure that all children have the same protection, regardless of any barriers they may face.

We give special consideration to children who:

- Have special educational needs or disabilities
- Are young carers
- May experience discrimination due to their race, ethnicity, religion, gender identification or sexuality
- Have English as an additional language
- Are known to be living in difficult situations for example, temporary accommodation or where there are issues such as substance abuse or domestic violence
- Are at risk of FGM, sexual exploitation, forced marriage, or radicalisation
- Are asylum seekers
- Are at risk due to their own or a family member's mental health needs
- Are looked after or previously looked after

## 5. Roles and responsibilities

At *Huxlow Science College* the named personnel with designated responsibility for safeguarding are:

Designated Safeguarding Lead	Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead	Safeguarding Governor
Laura Gauvrit	Cath McManus	Michael Fargher

The named personnel with Designated Responsibility regarding allegations against staff are:

Designated Senior Manager (normally the Head teacher)	Deputy Designated Senior Manager	Chair of Governors (in the event of an allegation against the head teacher)
Steve Gordon	Charlotte Wood	Michael Fargher

#### Northamptonshire Safeguarding Children Partnership Designated Officers:

- Designated Officer Administrator 01604 364031
- Designated Officer Andy Smith 01604 367862
- Designated Officer Christine York 01604 362633

Safeguarding and child protection is **everyone's** responsibility. This policy applies to all staff, volunteers and governors in the school and is consistent with the procedures of Northamptonshire Safeguarding Children Partnership

Our policy and procedures also apply to extended school and off-site activities.

We will include opportunities across the curriculum, including PSHE and IT for children to be taught about safeguarding and to develop the skills they need to recognise danger and know where to seek help.

We will maintain an attitude of "it could happen here" where safeguarding is concerned.

#### 5.1 ALL STAFF

All staff will read and understand <u>Part I and Annex A</u> of the Department for Education's statutory safeguarding guidance, <u>Keeping Children Safe in Education 2019</u> and review this guidance at least annually.

All staff will be aware of:

- Our systems which support safeguarding, including the staff code of conduct, the role of the designated safeguarding lead (DSL), the behaviour policy, and the safeguarding response to children who go missing from education
- The early help process and their role in it, including identifying emerging problems, liaising with the DSL, and sharing information with other professionals to support early identification and assessment
- The process for making referrals to local authority children's social care and for statutory assessments that may follow a referral, including the role they might be expected to play
- What to do if they identify a safeguarding issue or a child tells them they are being abused or neglected, including specific issues such as FGM, and how to maintain an appropriate level of confidentiality while liaising with relevant professionals

- The signs of different types of abuse and neglect, as well as specific safeguarding issues, such as child sexual exploitation (CSE), FGM and radicalisation. Appendix 4 and Appendix 5 of this policy outline in more detail how staff are supported to do this.
- Please refer to the <u>NSCP Website</u> for specific guidance on identification of neglect, <u>NSCB Neglect</u> <u>Toolkit</u> including roles and responsibilities for interventions. Please use the full suite of documents and guidance contained within the NSCP webpages - including the Neglect Screening Tool – <u>Neglect Screening Tool</u>

**Serious Violence**-All staff should be aware of indicators, which may signal that children are at risk from or are involved with serious violent crime. These may include increased absence from school, a change in friendships or relationships with older individuals or groups, a significant decline in performance, signs of self harm, or a significant change in wellbeing, or signs of assault or unexplained injuries. Unexplained gifts or new possessions could also indicate that children have been approached by or are involved with individuals associated with criminal networks or gangs.

#### 5.2 THE DESIGNATED SAFEGUARDING LEAD

Our DSL is **Laura Gauvrit**, Assistant Headteacher. The DSL takes lead responsibility for child protection and wider safeguarding. During term time, the DSL will be available during school hours for staff to discuss any safeguarding concerns. The DSL can be contacted out of school hours via email: <u>l.gauvrit@huxlow.northants.sch.uk</u>. When the DSL is absent, **Cath McManus**, SENCO and Deputy DSL (DDSL) <u>c.mcmanus@huxlow.northants.sch.uk</u>. If the DSL and DDSL are not available, **Steve Gordon**, Headteacher <u>s.gordon@huxlow.northants.sch.uk</u> will act as another point of contact.

The DSL will be given time, funding, training, resources and support to:

- Provide advice and support to other staff on child welfare and child protection matters
- Take part in strategy discussions and inter-agency meetings and/or support other staff to do so
- Contribute to the assessment of children
- Refer suspected cases, as appropriate, to the relevant body (local authority children's social care, Channel programme, Disclosure and Barring Service, and/or police), and support staff who make such referrals directly
- The DSL will also keep the head teacher informed of any issues, and liaise with Local Authority case managers and Designated Officers for child protection concerns as appropriate.

Whilst the activities of the designated safeguarding lead can be delegated to appropriately trained deputies, the ultimate **lead responsibility** for child protection, as set out above, remains with the designated safeguarding lead; this **lead responsibility** should not be delegated. (*Annex B; Paragraph 2 Keeping Children Safe in Education 2019*.)

The full responsibilities of the DSL are set out in their job description.

The Designated Safeguarding Lead should undergo formal training every two years. The DSL should also undertake Prevent awareness training. In addition to this training, their knowledge and skills should be refreshed, (for example via e-bulletins, meeting other DSLs, or taking time to read and digest safeguarding developments), at least annually.

#### 5.3 THE GOVERNING BODY

Governing Boards and proprietors should ensure that the school or college designates an appropriate senior member of staff to take lead responsibility for child protection. This person should have the status and authority within the school to carry out the duties of the post including committing resources and, where appropriate, supporting and directing other staff.

The governing board will approve this policy at each review, and hold the head teacher to account for its implementation.

The governing board will appoint a Governor Safeguarding Lead Michael Fargher to monitor the effectiveness of this policy in conjunction with the full governing board. This is always a different person from the DSL.

The chair of governors will act as the 'case manager' in the event that an allegation of abuse is made against the head teacher, where appropriate (see appendix 3).

#### 5.4 THE HEADTEACHER

The head teacher is responsible for the implementation of this policy, including:

- Ensuring that staff (including temporary staff) and volunteers are informed of this policy as part of their induction
- Communicating this policy to parents when their child joins the school and via the school website
- Ensuring that the DSL has appropriate time, funding, training and resources, and that there is always adequate cover if the DSL is absent
- Ensuring that all staff undertake appropriate safeguarding and child protection training and update this regularly
- Acting as the 'case manager' in the event of an allegation of abuse made against another member of staff or volunteer, where appropriate (see appendix 3)
- Ensuring the relevant staffing ratios are met, where applicable

## 6. Confidentiality

Safeguarding children raises issues of confidentiality that must be clearly understood by all staff/volunteers in schools.

- All staff in schools, both teaching and non-teaching staff, have a responsibility to share relevant information about the protection of children with other professionals, particularly the investigative agencies (Children's Services and the Police).
- Staff should never promise a child that they will not tell anyone about an allegation, as this may not be in the child's best interests
- Staff/volunteers who receive information about children and their families in the course of their work should share that information only within appropriate professional contexts.
- Timely information sharing is essential to effective safeguarding

Information must only be shared on a 'need-to-know' basis, but you do not need consent to share information if a child is suffering, or at risk of, serious harm

## 7. Recognising abuse and taking action

Staff, volunteers and governors must follow the procedures set out below in the event of a safeguarding issue. Please note that in this and subsequent sections any references to the DSL means 'the DSL (or deputy DSL) or headteacher.

#### 7.1 CHILDREN WHO MAY REQUIRE EARLY HELP

All staff should be aware of the **early help process**, and understand their role in identifying emerging problems, sharing information with other professionals to support early identification and assessment of a child's needs. It is important for children to receive the right help at the right time to address risks and prevent issues escalating. This also includes staff monitoring the situation and feeding back to the Designated Safeguarding Lead any ongoing/escalating concerns so that

consideration can be given to a referral to Children's Services if the child's situation does not appear to be improving.

#### Early Help Links:

- Follow this link: <u>Early Help</u> to access Northamptonshire's information and support for professionals regarding Early Help.
- The Early Help Strategy Link: <u>Early Help Strategy</u>
- Early Help Co-ordinator Link: Early Help Co-ordinators

Staff and volunteers working within the school should be alert to the potential need for early help for children also who are more vulnerable. For example:

- Children with a disability and/or specific additional needs.
- Children with special educational needs.
- Children who are acting as a young carer.
- Children who are showing signs of engaging in anti-social or criminal behaviour.
- Children whose family circumstances present challenges, such as substance abuse, adult mental health or learning disability, domestic violence.
- Children who are showing early signs of abuse and/or neglect.

#### 7.2 CHILDREN WITH SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES

Additional barriers can exist when recognising abuse and neglect in this group of children.

This can include:

- Assumptions that indicators of possible abuse such as behaviour; including for example: ADHD or other specific behavioural problems/diagnosis, mood and injury relate to the child's impairment without further exploration;
- Assumptions that children with SEN and disabilities can be disproportionally impacted by things like bullying without outwardly showing any signs;
- Communication barriers and difficulties;
- Reluctance to challenge carers, (professionals may over empathise with carers because of the perceived stress of caring for a disabled child);
- Disabled children often rely on a wide network of carers to meet their basic needs and therefore the potential risk of exposure to abusive behaviour can be increased;
- A disabled child's understanding of abuse;
- Lack of choice/participation;
- Isolation.

Directory of Services for Children with Disabilities: <u>Specialist-support-for SEND</u> Northamptonshire's Local Offer: <u>SEND Local Offer</u>

#### 7.3 THRESHOLDS FOR INTERVENTION

The DSL will decide on the most appropriate course of action and whether the concerns should be referred to Childrens Social Care-refer to <u>Northamptonshire Thresholds Guidance</u>. If it is decided to make a referral to Childrens Social care the parent will be informed, unless to do so would place the child at further risk or undermine the collection of evidence eg obtaining forensic evidence. All concerns, discussions and decisions will be recorded in writing. NB: Informing parents does not require seeking their consent to share the information with professionals who need to know.

The DSL will provide guidance on the appropriate action. Options will include:

• Managing any support for the child internally via the school's own pastoral support processes

- An Early Help Assessment or
- A referral for statutory services eg the child is or might be in need or suffering or likely to suffer significant harm

**Early Help** - If early help is appropriate, the DSL will generally lead on liaising with other agencies and setting up an inter-agency assessment as appropriate. Staff may be required to support other agencies and professionals in an early help assessment, in some cases acting as the lead practitioner. Any such cases should be kept under constant review and consideration given to a referral to Children's Social Care for assessment for statutory services if the child's situation does not appear to be improving or is getting worse.

**Children in Need** – A child in need is defined under the *Children Act 1989* as a child who is unlikely to achieve or maintain a reasonable level of health or development, or whose health and development is likely to be significantly or further impaired, without the provision of services; or a child who is disabled. The Local Authority is required to provide services for children in need for the purposes of safeguarding and promoting their welfare. Children in need may be assessed under section 17 of the *Children Act 1989*.

**Children suffering or likely to suffer significant harm** - Local authorities, with the help of other organisations as appropriate, have a duty to make enquiries under section 47 of the *Children Act 1989* if they have reasonable cause to suspect that a child is suffering, or is likely to suffer, significant harm. Such enquiries enable them to decide whether they should take any action to safeguard and promote the child's welfare and must be initiated where there are concerns about maltreatment, including all forms of abuse and neglect, female genital mutilation or other so-called honour based violence, and extra-familial threats like radicalisation and sexual exploitation.

The DSL should refer all cases of suspected abuse or neglect to the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), Police (cases where a crime may have been committed) and to the Channel programme where there is a radicalisation concern. Safeguarding Referrals must be made in one of the following ways:

- By telephone contact to the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH): 0300 126 1000 (Option 1)
- By e-mail to: MASH@northamptonshire.gcsx.gov.uk
- By using the online referral form found at:

http://www.northamptonshirescb.org.uk/more/borough-and-district-councils/how-to-make-an-

#### online-referral/

- In an emergency outside office hours, contact children's social care out of hours team on 01604
  626938 or the Police
- If a child is in immediate danger at any time, left alone or missing, you should contact the police directly and/or an ambulance using 999

#### 7.4 DEALING WITH DISCLOSURE

If a child discloses that he or she has been abused in some way, the member of staff/volunteer should:

- Listen to what is being said without displaying shock or disbelief
- Accept what is being said
- Allow the child to talk freely
- Reassure the child, but not make promises which it might not be possible to keep
- Never promise a child that they will not tell anyone as this may ultimately not be in the best interests of the child.
- Reassure him or her that what has happened is not his or her fault
- Stress that it was the right thing to tell
- Listen, only asking questions when necessary to clarify

- Not criticise the alleged perpetrator
- Explain what has to be done next and who has to be told
- Make a written record (see Record Keeping)
- Pass the information to the Designated Senior Person without delay. Alternatively, if appropriate, make a referral to children's social care and/or the police directly (see 7.1), and tell the DSL as soon as possible that you have done so.

#### 7.5 CONCERNS ABOUT A STAFF MEMBER OR VOLUNTEER

If you have concerns about a member of staff or volunteer, speak to the head teacher. If you have concerns about the head teacher, speak to the chair of governors.

You can also discuss any concerns about any staff member or volunteer with the DSL.

The head teacher/chair of governors/DSL will then follow the procedures set out in appendix 3, if appropriate.

The DSL (or chair of governors, in the case of a concern about the head teacher) will also inform the designated officer for the local authority. (Independent schools where the head teacher is the sole proprietor)

Where appropriate, the school will inform Ofsted of the allegation and actions taken, within the necessary timescale. (Early years providers)

For referrals regarding adults in education and other information on the role of the Designated Officer (formerly LADO) follow the link below:

#### Local Authority Designated Officers

An allegation is any information which indicates that a member of staff/volunteer may have:

- Behaved in a way that has, or may have harmed a child
- Possibly committed a criminal offence against/related to a child
- Behaved towards a child or children in a way which indicates she/he would pose a risk of harm if they work regularly or closely with children

This applies to any child the member of staff/volunteer has contact within their personal, professional or community life.

## What school or college staff should do if they have concerns about safeguarding practices within the school or college:

- All staff and volunteers should feel able to raise concerns about poor or unsafe practice and potential failures in the school or education setting's safeguarding arrangements.
- Appropriate whistle blowing procedures, which are suitably reflected in staff training and staff behaviour policies, should be in place for such concerns to be raised with the school or college's senior leadership team.

If staff members have concerns about another staff member then this should be referred to the Head Teacher or Principal. Where there are concerns about the Head Teacher or Principal, this should be referred to the Chair of Governors/Chair of the Management Committee/Proprietor as appropriate.

#### The Chair of Governors in this school is:

NAME:	CONTACT NUMBER:

**Michael Fargher** 

01536 654961

In the absence of the Chair of Governors, the Vice Chair should be contacted. The Vice Chair in this school is:

NAME:	CONTACT NUMBER:
David McVean	01536 654961

In the event of allegations of abuse being made against the Head Teacher, where the Head Teacher is also the sole Proprietor of an independent school or where a staff member feels unable to raise an issue with their employer or feels that their genuine concerns are not being addressed, allegations should be reported directly to the Designated Officer (formerly LADO). Staff may consider discussing any concerns with the Designated Safeguarding Lead if appropriate make any referral via them.

The person to whom an allegation is first reported should take the matter seriously and keep an open mind. She/he should not investigate or ask leading questions if seeking clarification; it is important not to make assumptions. Confidentiality should not be promised and the person should be advised that the concern will be shared on a 'need to know' basis only.

Actions to be taken include making an immediate written record of the allegation using the informant's words – including time, date and place where the alleged incident took place, brief details of what happened, what was said and who was present. This record should be signed, dated and immediately passed on to the Head Teacher. The recipient of an allegation must **not** unilaterally determine its validity, and failure to report it in accordance with procedures is a potential disciplinary matter.

The Head Teacher/Chair of Governors will not investigate the allegation itself, or take written or detailed statements, but will assess whether it is necessary to refer the concern to the Designated Officer (formerly LADO):

Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub: 0300 126 1000 (Option 1)

For referrals regarding adults in education and other information on the role of the Designated Officer (formerly LADO) follow the link below:

http://www.northamptonshirescb.org.uk/about-northamptonshire-safeguarding-childrenboard/who-is-who/designated-officer/

If the allegation meets any of the three criteria set out at the start of this section, contact should always be made with the Designated Officer (formerly LADO) without delay.

If it is decided that the allegation does not meet the threshold for safeguarding, it will be handed back to the employer for consideration via the school's internal procedures.

The Head Teacher should, as soon as possible, **<u>following briefing</u>** from the Designated Officer inform the subject of the allegation.

Where a staff member feels unable to raise an issue with their employer/through the whistle blowing procedure or feels that their genuine concerns are not being addressed, other whistle blowing channels may be open to them:

- Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub: 0300 126 1000 (Option 1)
- NSPCC whistle blowing helpline is available for staff who do not feel able to raise concerns regarding child protection failures internally. Staff can call: 0800 028 0285 line is available from 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM, Monday to Friday and Email: <u>help@nspcc.org.uk</u>

#### 7.6 SAFER WORKING PRACTICE

To reduce the risk of allegations, all staff should be aware of safer working practice and should be familiar with the guidance contained in the staff handbook/school code of conduct/staff behaviour policy and Safer Recruitment Consortium document *Guidance for safer working practice for those working with children and young people in education settings (September 2019).* 

The document seeks to ensure that the responsibilities of school leaders towards children and staff are discharged by raising awareness of illegal, unsafe, unprofessional and unwise behaviour. This includes guidelines for staff on positive behaviour management in line with the ban on corporal punishment (School Standards and Framework Act 1998). Please see the school/college's behaviour management policy for more information.

## 8. School procedures

#### Please see Appendix 3: What to do if you are worried a child is being abused flowchart.

If our staff have any concerns about a child's welfare, they should act on them immediately

If staff have a concern, they should follow this child protection policy and speak to the DSL (or deputy).

Options will then include:

- managing any support for the child internally via the school or college's own pastoral support processes;
- an early help assessment;
- a referral for statutory services, for example as the child might be in need, is in need or suffering or likely to suffer harm.

The DSL or a deputy should always be available to discuss safeguarding concerns. If in exceptional circumstances, the DSL (or deputy) is not available, this should not delay appropriate action being taken. Staff should consider speaking to a member of the senior leadership team and/or take advice from local children's social care. In these circumstances, any action taken should be shared with the designated safeguarding lead (or deputy) as soon as is practically possible.

Our staff should not assume a colleague or another professional will take action and share information that might be critical in keeping children safe. They should be mindful that early information sharing is vital for effective identification, assessment and allocation of appropriate service provision.

If a **teacher** (persons employed or engaged to carry out teaching work at schools and other institutions in England), in the course of their work in the profession, discovers that an act of Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) appears to have been carried out on a girl under the age of 18 <u>the teacher must report</u>

this to the police after informing the Designated Safeguarding Lead Person. <u>This is a mandatory</u> <u>reporting duty.</u> See Appendix 1- Keeping Children Safe in Education (DfE 2019): Annex A for further details.

The member of staff must record information regarding the concerns on the same day. The recording must be a clear, precise, factual account of the observations. Particular attention will be paid to the attendance and development of any child about whom the school has concerns, or who has been identified as being the subject of a child protection plan and a written record will be kept.

The Designated Safeguarding Lead is responsible for making the senior leadership team aware of trends in behaviour that may affect pupil welfare. If necessary, training will be arranged.

## 9. Communication with parents/ carers

*Huxlow Science College* will ensure the Child Protection Policy is available publicly either via the school or college website or by other means.

Where appropriate, we will discuss any concerns about a child with the child's parents. The DSL will normally do this in the event of a suspicion or disclosure.

Other staff will only talk to parents about any such concerns following consultation with the DSL.

If we believe that notifying the parents would increase the risk to the child, we will discuss this with the local authority children's social care before doing so.

In the case of allegations of abuse made against other children, we will normally notify the parents of all the children involved.

## 10. Online Safety

Our *Online Safety Policy* is set out in a separate document. We ensure that we have effective mechanisms to identify, intervene in, and escalate any incident where appropriate. Online safety is included in our curriculum at all levels and information is also provided to parents/carers. All staff are made aware of the school policy on Online Safety which sets our expectations relating to:

- Creating a safer online environment including training requirements, filters and monitoring;
- Giving everyone the skills, knowledge and understanding to help children and young people stay safe on-line;
- Inspiring safe and responsible use and behaviour;
- Safe use of mobile phones both within school and on school trips/outings;
- Safe use of camera equipment, including camera phones; and
- What steps to take if you have concerns and where to go for further help.

Staff must read the *Online Safety Policy* in conjunction with our Code of Conduct in relation to personal online behaviour.

#### 11. Useful links

NSCB NSCB Schools NSPCC 0808 800 5000 ChildLine: 0800 1111 Child Exploitation and Online Protection (CEOP): 0870 000 3344 Online safety training and advice contact: <u>Onlinesafety@northamptonshire.gov.uk</u> Online safety policy examples: <u>Online safety policy examples</u>

Inspecting Safeguarding In the Early Years 2019: Inspecting-safeguarding-in-early-years-education-andskills

Early Years Foundation Stage Statutory Framework: Early Years Foundation Stage Statutory Framework

## 12. Record keeping

All concerns, discussions and decisions made and the reasons for those decisions should be recorded in writing. If in doubt about recording requirements staff should discuss with the Designated Safeguarding Lead.

When a child has made a disclosure, the member of staff/volunteer should:

- Record as soon as possible after the conversation. Use the school record of concern sheet wherever possible.
- Do not destroy the original notes in case they are needed by a court
- Record the date, time, place and any noticeable non-verbal behaviour and the words used by the child
- Draw a diagram to indicate the position of any injuries
- Record statements and observations rather than interpretations or assumptions

All records need to be given to the Designated Safeguarding Lead promptly. No copies should be retained by the member of staff or volunteer.

The Designated Safeguarding Lead will ensure that all safeguarding records are managed in accordance with the Education (Pupil Information) (England) Regulations 2005.

Non-confidential records will be easily accessible and available. Confidential information and records will be held securely and only available to those who have a right or professional need to see them. We will hold records in line with our records retention schedule.

If a child for whom the school has, or has had, safeguarding concerns moves to another school, the DSL will ensure that their child protection file is forwarded promptly and securely, and separately from the main pupil file. In addition, if the concerns are significant or complex, and/or social services are involved, the DSL will speak to the DSL of the receiving school and provide information to enable them to have time to make any necessary preparations to ensure the safety of the child.

## 13. Training

#### 13.1 ALL STAFF

All staff members will undertake safeguarding and child protection training at induction, including on whistle-blowing procedures, to ensure they understand the school's safeguarding systems and their responsibilities, and can identify signs of possible abuse or neglect. This training will be regularly updated and will be in line with advice from Children First Northamptonshire. All staff will have training on the government's anti-radicalisation strategy, Prevent, to enable them to identify children at risk of being drawn into terrorism and to challenge extremist ideas. Staff will also receive regular safeguarding and child protection updates (for example, through headteacher briefing, emails, staff meetings and staff notes) as required, but at least annually. Volunteers will receive appropriate training, if applicable.

#### **13.2 THE DSL AND DEPUTIES**

The DSL and Deputies will undertake child protection and safeguarding training at least every 2 years.

In addition, they will update their knowledge and skills at regular intervals and at least annually (for example, through e-bulletins, meeting other DSLs, or taking time to read and digest safeguarding developments).

They will also undertake Prevent awareness training.

#### **13.3 GOVERNORS**

All governors are invited to receive training about safeguarding, to make sure they have the knowledge and information needed to perform their functions and understand their responsibilities.

As the chair of governors may be required to act as the 'case manager' in the event that an allegation of abuse is made against the headteacher, they receive training in managing allegations for this purpose.

#### **13.4 RECRUITMENT – INTERVIEW/ APPOINTMENT PANELS**

At least one person on any interview/appointment panel for a post at the school will have undertaken safer recruitment training. This will cover, as a minimum, the contents of the Department for Education's statutory guidance, Keeping Children Safe in Education, and be in line with local safeguarding procedures.

#### 13.5 STAFF WHO HAVE CONTACT WITH STUDENTS AND FAMILIES

All staff who have contact with children and families will have supervisions which will provide them with support, coaching and training, promote the interests of children and allow for confidential discussions of sensitive issues.

## 14. Monitoring arrangements

This policy is statutory and will be reviewed annually by the Curriculum & Welfare Committee.

## 15. Related policies

This policy forms part of a suite of documents and policies which relate to the safeguarding responsibilities of the school.

Huxlow Science College complies with this guidance and the procedures set out by Northamptonshire Safeguarding Children Partnership.

In particular this policy should be read in conjunction with the following school policies:-

Safer Recruitment Policy, Managing Allegations against school staff Policy, Whistle-blowing Policy, Equality in Employment Policy, Attendance Policy, Behaviour Policy, Antibullying Policy, Online-Safety Policy, Drugs Policy, Anti-Harassment Policy, Complaints Procedures, Education of Pupils with Medical Needs Policy Educational Visits Policy, Special Educational Needs Policy, Looked After Children Policy, Sex & Relationships Policy, Supporting Students with Medical Needs in School Policy, Public Equality Duty and all Health and Safety policies, Privacy notices.

Signed ..... Chair, Curriculum & Welfare Committee

Date .....